
 

 

 
 

Parks, Recreation & Culture Advisory Committee 
Agenda for Meeting to be held on  

Wednesday, January 20, 2021 at 7pm via ZOOM 
 

The goal of the Parks, Recreation and Culture Advisory Committee is to provide advice and 
recommendations to Council regarding the establishment and implementation of Parks, Recreation and 
Culture priorities in the Town of Ladysmith. 
   

 
1. Acknowledgement 

The Town of Ladysmith acknowledges with gratitude that this meeting takes 
place on the traditional, unceded territory of the Stz’uminus First Nation. 
 

2. Welcome Pamela Zwicker, Administrative Services Supervisor. 
 

3. Agenda Approval 
 

4. Minutes  
a. Minutes of the meeting held December 16, 2020 

 

5. Old Business 
a. Park Naming Policy proposed amendment 

• Discussion around adding language to the Park Naming Policy to include 
indigenous history and culture. 
 

6. PRC Department Update 
 

 
 

 

 



 
 

Minutes of the Parks, Recreation & Culture Advisory Committee 
Wednesday, December 16, 2020 at 7:00pm 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT:    STAFF PRESENT:  
Tim Richards Geoff Dean Chris Barfoot 
Mike Brocklebank Brynn Dovey  Robyn McAdam 
Ava Smith 
Councillor Duck Paterson 
Lesley Lorenz 

Lynda Baker 
Emily Weeks 

 

   
REGRETS:    

 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

 
MINUTES 
 
 
 
 

 
Moved and seconded:  
2020-09: That Parks, Recreation and Culture Advisory Committee 
approve the agenda for the meeting with the following additions: 

• Public Art Task Group update 

Motion carried.  
 

Moved and seconded:  
2020-10: That Parks, Recreation and Culture Advisory Committee 
approve the minutes of the October, 2020 meeting as presented.  
Motion carried.  
 

 

  
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
UPDATES 

Official Community Plan (OCP) Steering Committee – The Town is 
undertaking a review of its Official Community Plan (OCP) and is seeking 
stakeholder representatives for the Official Community Plan Steering 
Committee. The steering committee will help guide the review process by 
providing feedback to staff, consultants and Council.  Council has requested that 
the PRCAC put forth two nominees from the PRCAC for the OCP Steering 
Committee.  The committee reviewed the Terms of Reference and discussed time 
commitment and importance of having a diverse committee.   
 
Moved and seconded: 
2020-11: That Parks, Recreation and Culture Advisory Committee put forward 
E. Weeks, L. Lorenz, and G. Dean for nomination for the OCP Steering 
Committee. 
Motion carried. 
   
 
Public Art Task Group – Lynda Baker provided the group with an update 
from the PATG.  The Public Art Task Group has been working on an art 
donation policy, updating existing public art inventory, and applying for 
grants. 
 



 
 

 
 

PRC Department Update Discussion – PRCAC was provided a department 
update by staff included in the agenda.  Project updates included:  

• Lot 108 implementation 

• Arts and Heritage Hub 

• Recreation Services 

• Facility Maintenance Operations Manager 

The Committee agreed that it was beneficial having an update report 
included in the agenda and would like to continue receiving updates on 
program demands/changes due to COVID as well as project updates 
such as the Machine Shop and the bridge at Colonia Drive.  These 
updates help provide information to members who can in turn provide 
information to the public.   

 
 

  
Meeting adjourned at 8:00 PM 
Next meeting will be held at 7:00pm, January 20, 2021 via ZOOM. 

  



   
 

12-5810-B 

POLICY  
TOPIC:   Park and Facility Naming Policy 
POLICY No:   12-5810-B 
APPROVED BY:  Council RESOLUTION No: CS 2020-049 

DATE: February 4, 2020 

AMENDED:   
 
Purpose: 

The Town of Ladysmith is committed to providing a fair, consistent and efficient process with 
respect to naming, renaming or dedication of Town assets such as parks, trails and facilities.  
The purpose of this policy is to establish a systematic and consistent approach for the official 
naming or renaming of municipal parks, recreational areas, amenities and facilities within the 
Town of Ladysmith. 
  
Definition of Terms: 
 

• Component Feature/Facility - means all substantial structures or recreational aspects of a 
park, which includes, but is not limited to, such things as: sport fields, ball diamonds, hard 
surface courts, playgrounds, tennis courts, pickle ball courts, gardens, washrooms/change 
rooms/fieldhouses and skateboard park facilities, etc. 
 

• Commemorative Naming - naming rights granted to honour outstanding achievement, 
distinctive service, or significant community contribution. Commemorative naming will 
not include a financial contribution.  
 

• Individual and Community Organization Commemorative Naming - naming rights 
granted to an individual, group of individuals, family foundation, or a non-profit community 
organization in recognition of significant philanthropy.  
 

• Open Space - includes, but is not limited to, trails, pathway systems, and green spaces 
under the jurisdiction of the Town of Ladysmith. 
  

• Parkland - means all parkland designations including, but not limited to, dedicated 
parkland, parks, community parks, neighbourhood parks, etc. owned by and/or under the 
jurisdiction of the Town of Ladysmith.  

 
• Significant Financial Gifts - means a monetary donation reflective of the total capital cost 

or appraised value of the amenity being considered for naming. 
 

Criteria 
 
1. Commemorative Name Designation Associated with Functional Use or Location 

 
1.1. This is based on geographical location, historical or cultural significance, distinctive 

natural or geological features, and the wishes of the community in which it is located.  



12-5810-B 
 

• Staff may assign a name based on the adjacent street, functional use, geographic 
feature, community name or historic significance. 

• Chosen names within this designation shall be assigned by staff and may remain 
unchanged until Council has approved a formal request for name change.  
 

2. Commemorative Name Designation Associated in Honour of Individuals or Groups  
 
2.1. This section applies to any request for naming renaming a park/open space, or component 

feature in honour of individuals or groups. All requests for naming, designating or 
renaming in honour of individuals or groups shall be submitted in writing  to the Director 
of Parks, Recreation and Culture, and will include a supporting application, explanation 
and/or justification;  
 

2.2. Staff to conduct a historical review prior to referring to Parks, Recreation and Culture 
Advisory Committee or Council  
 

2.3. The Director will forward the letter of request and or accompanied application to the 
PRCAC for recommendation to Council; 
 

2.4. The Director will forward the PRCAC recommendation(s) to Council for consideration.  
 

2.5. Names for consideration shall be those of distinguished persons, organizations, 
corporations, foundations or families:  
• where there has been significant contribution to the quality of life or well-being of 

the citizens of the Town of Ladysmith;  
• where the person/group is perceived as a role model and open to close scrutiny 

relative to their character, integrity and values;  
• demonstrated excellence, courage or exceptional service to the citizens of the Town 

of Ladysmith; 
• to memorialize or otherwise recognize substantial gifts and significant donors, 

individuals designated by donors, or individuals who have made exemplary or 
meritorious contributions to the Town;  

• where there is a strong historical or cultural connection to the Town and has a major 
contribution to the historical or cultural preservation of the Town; 

• where there is a strong contribution toward environmental preservation, 
conservation or enhancement of the Town;  

• where there is a major contribution made to the acquisition, development or 
conveyance of land or building in question and/or its subsequent development; or  

• where there is a direct relationship or association that exists between the place or 
former place of residence of the person or group and the facility/park to be named.  
 

2.6. Naming in honour of elected or appointed public officials, Town of Ladysmith officials, or 
staff shall normally occur only after the public service or Town employment has 
concluded.  
 

2.7. Notwithstanding the above, Council, by resolution, may approve a name or name change 
in honour of individuals or groups when circumstances justify such action. Council may 



12-5810-B 
 

also remove the original name designation when circumstances justify such action. 
  

3. Commemorative Names of Provincial, National or International Significance  
 
3.1. Council may approve a name or name change in honour of individuals or groups who have 

made an outstanding contribution provincially, nationally, or internationally.  
 

3.2. In such instances, and prior to approving the use of any name of individuals or group, staff 
shall investigate any protocol and/or requirements of any provincial, national or 
international agency or organization.  
 

4. Names Derived from Significant Financial Contributions  
 
4.1. In selected instances where a naming request has been proposed as a result of receiving a 

unique and extraordinary financial, or other significant contribution, towards the 
acquisition, creation or redevelopment of a property or park consideration will be given to 
the sponsorship contribution being provided. The merits and value of each such naming 
will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis. It should not be assumed that a financial 
contribution guarantees that a park is named after the service 
club/business/individual/organization.  
 

5. Renaming Existing Parks 
 
5.1. Renaming of parks and open spaces carries with it a much greater burden of process 

compared to initial naming. Tradition and continuity of name and community 
identification are important community values. Each application must meet the criteria in 
this policy, but meeting all criteria does not automatically ensure renaming. Critical 
examination will be conducted to ensure that renaming the park will not diminish the 
original justification for the name or the prior contributors. Renaming will follow the same 
procedures as naming a park/open space, or component feature. 
 

5.2. Only parks and facilities named for geographic location, outstanding feature or 
subdivision should be considered for renaming. Parks that have been named by deed 
restriction shall not be considered for renaming.  
 

5.3. Parks and facilities named after individuals shall not be changed unless it is found that 
because of the individual’s character the continued use of their name would not be in the 
best interest of the community.  
 

5.4. Existing names will not be changed without the consideration of:  
• the historical significance of the existing name;  
• the impact on the individual or organization associated with the existing name; 

and  
• the cost and impact of changing existing signage, rebuilding community 

recognition and updating records (data bases, maps, promotional materials, etc.).  
 

5.5. Only nominations having a direct relevance to the park/open space, or a component 
feature within the space in question will be considered for renaming.  
 



12-5810-B

5.6. Renaming of a park/open space, or component feature may occur if:  
• the policy criteria are met;
• a valid justification for renaming the facility is provided;
• changing the name will not cause undue confusion within the community; and
• an appropriate level of community support exists.

6. Approval Process 

6.1. Staff to forward proposal to local neighbourhood association or community group for
comments if applicable.

6.2. Staff to forward proposal to donor for comment (if land or facility was gifted to the Town). 
6.3. Staff to conduct historical review prior to recommendation of approval.
6.4. Staff to ensure nominee (or legal representative / family if nominee is deceased) is in

agreement with naming proposal.
6.5. Naming proposal placed on website for 30 calendar days seeking written comments from

the public.
6.6. Director of Parks, Recreation and Culture to submit report including application,

historical background and comments received to the Parks, Recreation and Culture 
Advisory Committee for recommendation for Council’s consideration. 

7. Inventory of Names 

7.1. The Parks, Recreation and Culture Department shall be responsible for maintaining an
inventory of names for parks/open spaces, and component features/facilities. 

7.2. Practices to be avoided include:  
• naming a park after a nearby, but not immediately adjacent, school or institution

that may lead to confusion regarding their respective locations;
• use of existing (or similar) names of parks within the Town, to avoid duplication

and confusion;
• names that are meaningful only to a few members of the community;
• proposed request that a specific builder, developer or real estate company be

used in the name; and,
• chosen names reflect streets not adjacent to park to ensure continuity and

minimize conflicts for emergency services.

8. Signage

8.1. The Town will be responsible for coordinating the public presentation of signage to
acknowledge the naming/renaming designation. Costs associated with naming/renaming 
of a park/open space or component feature as outlined in this policy will be assumed by 
the Town of Ladysmith.  

8.2. The Town will have final approval for the selection and location of any signage, including 
text and design. 



12-5810-B

8.3. The Town will be responsible for coordinating the public presentation of signage to 
acknowledge the naming/renaming designation. The Town of Ladysmith will assume costs 
associated with naming/renaming of a park/open space or component feature as outlined 
in this policy.  

8.4. The Town will have final approval for the selection and location of any signage, including 
text and design. 

8.5. The Town will bear the responsibility of ongoing maintenance for the signage. 



2021.01.20 - PR&C Department Update 

Recreation: 

PHO guidelines have been extended to Feb 5, 2021.  Staff have been navigating these orders well, 
making necessary adjustments to programming and service delivery.  The latest orders affected 
group fitness specific to high intensity training.  This impacted many of the proposed programs 
scheduled for January including Aquatic Fitness.  We are pleased that with minor modifications 
and intensity level adjustments, many of these programs are able to be offered to the community. 

Children and Youth programs have been reactivated and staff will continue to add to the diverse 
range of programs being offered to the varying age ranges. 

Sports: 

Local sport groups continue to be affected by the restrictions and health orders.  All sports are 
suspended in order for organizations to make necessary modifications and adjustments to their 
Safety Plans.  Youth sports are starting to resume however adult group sports are still suspended 
under the current order. 

Events: 

The PRC team is working on developing Family Day ‘Activity Play Kits’ in an effort to assist 
families and the community in celebrating Family Day in a safe and meaningful manner.  Similar 
play kits were given out on Canada Day and were a huge success. 

Projects: 

Lot 108 – The Slope and Grading Study is underway.  Survey has been completed.  Next steps will 
be to address drainage and storm water management.  Once complete the study will be presented 
to the Parks, Recreation and Culture Advisory Committee for information. 


	2021.01.20 AGENDA.pdf
	The goal of the Parks, Recreation and Culture Advisory Committee is to provide advice and recommendations to Council regarding the establishment and implementation of Parks, Recreation and Culture priorities in the Town of Ladysmith.

	2020.12.16 MINUTES.pdf
	COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT:    STAFF PRESENT:

	12 5810 B Park and Facility Naming Policy.pdf
	2021.01.20 PRC_Department_Update.pdf

